
UNITED NATIONS 

ECONOMIC AND SOCIAL COUNCIL 
1143rd meeting 

Tuesday~ 25 April 1961 
at 3.10 p.m. 

Agenda item 6 : 

Thirty~~~first Session · 
OFFICIAL RECORDS 

CONTENTS 
Page 

Question of a declaration on international economic co-opera-
tion (continued) .................. " . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 7 

President: Mr. Foss SHANAHAN (New Zea.la.nd). 

Present: 
Representatives of the following States: Afghanistan, 

Brazil, Bulgaria, Denmar!k., El Salvador, Ethiopia, 
France, Italy, Japan, Jordan, New Zealand, Poland, 
Spain, Union of Soviet Socialist Republics, United 

·Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland, United 
States of America, Uruguay, Venezuela. 

Observers for the following Member States: Argentina, 
Canada, Czechoslovakia, Hungary, Peru, Romania, 
Thailand, Yugoslavia. 

Representatives of the following specialized agencies: 
Food and Agriculture Organization of the United 
Nations; United Nations Educational, Scientific and 
Cultural Organization. 

The representative of the International Atomic Energy 
Agency. 

AGENDA ITEM 6 

Question of a declaration 
on international economic co-operation 

(E/3445, E/3467) (continued) 

1. Mr. URQUIA (El Salvador) deplored the fact that 
the discussion in the Council was taking place in a cold
war atmosphere such as had prevailed at the meetings of 
the political committees at the fifteenth session of the 
General Assembly. Economic questions should not, 
however, be the subject of controversy; the particular 
question before the Council was of paramount impor
tance, particularly for the small countries, and it would 
be helpful if the Council could recommend a declaration 
on economic co-operation to the General Assembly for 
adoption. Such a declaration should, however, be drafted 
objectively and· without haste. 

2. While the text of the draft declaration submitted by 
the Soviet Union (E/3467) was excellent in some respects, 
the ·Council did not have time for the careful examina
tion which would be needed if . it were to make deletions 
or additions. The problem was not amenable to a rapid 
solution; the text of the declaration and the records of the 
meetings should be available to the members · of the 
Council and to all States Members of the organization 
so that they could form an opinion on the subject. 

3. He did not propose to discuss the substance of the 
problem, but would suggest that the consideration of the 
draft declaration should be postponed until the following 
session of the Council or until its 1962 spring session, 
which would give Governments more time. 

4. Mr. PENTEADO (Brazil) warned the Council against 
giving its imagination rein and reading into the text 

NEW YORK 

ideas and intentions which the sponsor had never enter
tained. In view of the basic ideas enunciated in the 
preamble of the draft declaration, he had no objections 
of principle; such a declaration might or might not be 
useful, but in no circumstances could it be harmful. 

5. Brazil, a developing country. could not claim to be 
fully satisfied with the principles at present governing the 
organization of the world economy, Despite the great 
efforts made in recent years in the matter of assistance, 
the results achieved 4ad been relatively disappointing 
because the assistance given had not been all that it 
should or, perhaps, could have been. A highly encou
raging change of attitude was, however, taking place. It 
was unfortunate that there was no international economic 
organjzation capable of co-ordinating economic interests 
and tbe problems of economic development; it was also to 
be regretted that the industrialized countries tended to 
attach greater importance to immediate trade benefits 
rather than to the benefits they might derive from prospe
rity shared on a world-wide basis. From that standpoint, 
the setting up of regional markets might give grounds 
for concern: it was, however necessary to take advan
tage of such opportunities for action as were available. 
He hoped that a more equitable attitude would be adopted 
towards ib~~ under-developed countries in matters of trade 
and payments. The draft declaration submitted by the 
Soviet Union, which could be improved in form though 
not in substance, was a step in that direction; neither 
l~·;~ nec~ssity nor its potential usefulness could therefore 
I:n rler~::ed:. and the Brazilian delegation would vote in 
hvour of it. 

6. Mr. VIAUD (France) began by pointing out that 
new developments had occurred since the draft declara
tion of the Soviet Union had been referred to the Council 
by the Second Committee of the General Assembly: in 
the first place, the session of. the Council had been delayed 
for reasons outside its control, and the time lost could not 
be made good: in the second place, a new text of the 
draft declaration hacl been circulated, thus making it 
necessary for Governments to give the matter further 
thought. A topic of such importance could not be 
dismissed within a few days. The feasibility of such a 
declaration in present circumstances was open to question; 
in the text, the sponsor stressed the need for peaceful 
co-existence between countries with different social 
systems, but the question arose whether such co-existence 
was possible between planned-economy countries, whose 
main method of action was coercion, and countries whose 
economy was based on free enterprise and which preferred 
the method of persuasion. Peaceful co-existence implied 
recognition of the other party's interests and rights, of 
its factual existence. The communist countries, 'b.owever, 
would brook no compromise and would not acctpt the 
existence of the capitalist countries. That attitude had 
recently b~en restated in the declaration by the eighty-one 
communist parties that co-existence did not mean 
abandonment either of the class struggle or the ideological 
.struggle, or even partial acceptance of capitalism. Even 
were the USSR delegation to reply that its Government's 
actions . should not be confused with the comr.nttnist 

2'7 E/SR.1143 



28 Econoruic and Social Council - Thirty·fb:~Jt s,~ion --.._ ------------------------------- ---------------~~--------

economic or philosophical doctrine, he would still have 
the gravest doubts on thG matter. 

7. In any case, it was questionable whether a declaration 
would serve any u~~~'!.tl purpose. In its general section, 
the draft submitted by the Soviet delegation re~tated 
principles which had been enunciated earlier in 
international ~.greements, particularly in the Charter. 
Although he would not raise any objection, he doubted 
the usefulness of recasting recognized principles in a 
new form of words. With regard to the provisions 
dealing with trade policy, many countries had not waited 
for the draft declaration before introducing the principle 
of non-discrimination in their mutual relations and 
granting each other most-favoured-nation treatment. 
Those expressions had a specific meaning for them, while, 
for a .-~ountry like the USSR, in which foreign trade was 
organized as a monopoly, they probably had an entirely 
different meaning. He doubted whether it was possible 
for the countries with planned economies and those with 
free economies to agree on common principles in the field 
of trade policy so long as they did not use the same 
language. Where assistance· to the developing countries 
was concerned, the draft declaration repeated in a 
modified form provisions which had already been adopted, 
particularly in General Assembly resolution 1515 (XV). 
It should be pointed out, moreover, that declarations 
were a matter of greater si~ificance than ordinary 
resolutions. They should therefore be adopted only in 
exceptional circumstances. 

8. That was why he was inclined to agree with the 
representative of El Salvador that consideration of the 
dt·aft declaration should be postponed until a later 
session. Pending such consideration, it might perhaps 
be possible to obtain the views of Governments which 
were not represented on the Cou})cil. In the meantime, 
the French delegation would be glad to hear the USSR 
delegation's reactions to the preliminary remarks it had 
made at the present stage of the discuss~on. 

9. Mr. LEWANDOWSKI (Poland) thought that the 
continuous efforts made in the United Nations during 
the past fifteen years i.n the field of economic co
operation had achieved encouraging, but only pa!tial 
r-esults. New developments had altered the structure of 
the world ec.vnomy, which had also suffered from the 
impact of the cold war and from anachronistic measures 
of protection and er.onomic reprisals. While the benefits 
of economic co-operation and free trade were beyond 
dispute, there was a need to define the relevant rules and 
principles, because the question had many aspects and 
could be approad·~~d from a variety of angles. The 
USSR draft declaration, which proposed solutions to 
fundamental prob!ems, deserved very careful considl;ra
tion. In certain quarters the decision to give it such 
consideration would be taken reluctantly, because a 
revision of economic policy wo,,tld no doubt be required 
in order 'to· take accotmt of the need for pe?,~eful 
coexistence among socialist and capitalist countries; ~"".::h 
a readjustment was indispensable, however~ if th<l United 
Nations waa to remah an organ for international co-
operation. · 

10. The most significant development in recent years 
'fJas the ever-grov.ing importance assumed bv the 
sociaUst system. Industrial output ~n the socialist 
countries, in which the annual t"ate of growth in the 
period 1950~1959 had been 13.7 per cent as against 
4.8 per cent in the capita.lizi countries, wo.uld account 
for half the world total by 1965. Bilateral and 
multilateral assistance furnished by the socialist countries 
to the less developed countries had shown an even more 

striking increase. Unfortunately, despite some signs of 
improvement, the state of trade between the socialist and 
the capitalist countries was far less satisfactory, as a 
result, inter alia, of the discriminatory and restrictive 
measures taken by certain western countries. Poland, for 
its part, was ready to expand its economic relations with 
the whole world, because it believed that . peaceful 
coexistence, both econqmic and political, · was an 
established fact; that point provided a partial answer to 
the French representative's criticisms. 

11. The rapid changes taking place in the less developed 
areas of the world, the attainment of independence by 
many countries which were resolved to occupy their 
rightful place, the process of disintegration of the old 
system of economic relations, which in the past existed 
between the industrial countries of Europe and America 
and the former colonies in Asia, Africa and Laan 
America, gradual changes in the character of economic 
relations between the former metropolis and its erstwhile 
colonies, constituted another important factor in the· 
present economic situation. The expansion of foreign 
trade which had a direct impact on the level of 
employment and, consequently, on the tempo of 
development, was indispensable to commodity~exporting 
countnes and to countries which had not yet attained 
their full production potential. Their developmPnt 
programmes had been hindered by the losses suffered as 
a result of fluctuations in commodity prices. Stabilization 
of those prices through international co-operatilln would 
provide the under-developed countries with additional 
funds, thus enabling them to increase ' their rate of 
growth. Furthermore, if the principles enunciated in 
article 5 of the draft declaration 1.,vere adopted, economic 
assistance to those countries would no longer be a weapon 
of the cold war. The less developed countries could 
also benefit from the Inflow of resources released by 
disarmament. 

12. Emphasizing the growing need for a conc1~rted effort 
by all countries and the rapid changes in the world 
economy, he pointed out the necessity to make an effort 
to give the authentic interpretation of the general 
principles embodied in the ·Charter. That was the 
objective of the USSR draft declaration. ' 

13. Mr. FRANZ! (Italy) said be would confine himself 
to a few general remarks, since his delegation bad not had 
time to study the draft declaration in detail. 

14. For many years the United Nations had b~~en doing 
extremely valuable work with regard to the economic 
development of the under-developed countries--which 
seemed to be the main objective of the draft declaration 
submitted by the USSR-in the absence of any declara
tion. The Committee for Industrial Development and 
other bodies hari recently been set up, Fl,rthermore, the 
recent experience of Yugoslavia and Itaiy demonstrated 
that, contrary to what was sometime:; believed, economic 
co-operation did not precede, but followed the settlenlent 

r of politic~'!! differences. 

15. Thr,~ statistics showed that, where international 
economic co-operation was concerned, the USSR's 
economic and trade relations were primarily with the 
other planned-economy countries, the raim being to 
establish a form of economic autaJrlky among those 
countries That was hardly the kind of co·operation 
which should serve as a model for the United Nations. 

16. Consequently, there would seem to be no urgent 
need for the adoption of a declaration in the economic 
field, and he supported the Salvadorian representative's 
proposal that the USSR draft sh~uld be referred to the 

·States Members of the United Nations for consideration. 



'1143rd meeting- 25 . April 1961 · 29 

A questionnaire would be addressed to the Governments 
of those States, which would also be asked to give their 
vie':\·:. on the form which the declaration should take. 

17. ·Mr. KAKITSUBO (Japan) said he would like to 
correct the false impression which the USSR delegation 
might have given by accusing the United States and the 
Western European countries of following discriminatory 
practices in their trade relations with Japan. It was 
true that fourteen countries, basing themselves on 
article XX..XV of the General Agreement on Tariffs and 
Trade, had refused to grant most-favoured-nation treat
ment to Japan, but Japan hoped that it would be possible 
to solve the problems shortly through the machinery of 
GATT. Moreover, it had the most cordial relations 
with the United States, which constituted its largest 
export market, and although United States manufacturers, 
conc.~rn,~d by Japanese competition, had occasionally 
decided on a boycott of Japanese goods, an amicable 
settlement had always· been reached and the boycott had 
never been enforced. 

18 . .Japan, whose economy was largely based on trade, 
wished to exchange goods with all countries in the world, 
regardless of their regime. It had already concluded 
bilateral agreements with the USSR, Czechoslovakia and 
Poland and its trade with the planned-economy countries 
was constantly· increasing. 

19. However, Japan doubt€d whether the Soviet Union's 
draft declaration was either necessary or desirable at the 
present time. General Assembly resolution 1515 (XV) 
which had originally been proposed by the United 
Kingdom and had been adopted after an extremely 
animated debate, 1 already embodied the main provisions 
of the draft declaration. He referred Council members 
in particular to sub-paragraphs (a), (b) and (c) of 
operative paragraph 3, to sub-paragraphs (a), (b) , (d) 
and (e) of operative paragraph 4 and to operative 
paragraph 5 of the .resolution. 

20. What the Council should now do, therefore, was to 
apply the provisions of that resolution and not waste a 
great deal of time in reaffirming, in a new form, the 
principles embodied in the Charter and the resolutions 
already adopted. He accordingly hoped that the delega
. ~-m of the USSR would agree to the debate on the draft 
ra ... cla.ration being deferred to a later date. , 

21. Mr. PAZHWAK (Afghanistan) said-and he hc,ped 
that the delegation of the USSR, whkh was to ·be 
congratulated on its initiative, would not take any 
offence-that the draft declaration submitted to the 
Council should also be considered as a draft declaration 
by the under-developed countries, in view of the 
importance to them of the text submitted, and indeed, 
since the text was based on resolution 1515 (XV), which 
had been adopted ·unf..~limously by the General Assembly, 
as ·a draft declaration by all States Members of the 
United Nations. 

2 2. The Afghan delegation considered that, in present 
circumstances, such a declaration was urgently required 
in the interest of all countries, particularly the under
developed countries. The fact that the United Nations 
had already adopted resolutions along the same lines 
did not detract from its value in any way; in fact, the 
contrary was true. · 

23. Indeed, in the preamble to resolution 1515 (XV) 
the Assembly had expressed its belief that the principles 

1 Se4J 0!/i.cial Record$ of tha General·A.ssMnbly, Fi/teenth Session, 
Second Committee, 672nd, 673rd, and 6~5th to 679th meetings. 

of the Charter· should be ·reaffirmed now that so many 
States had recently become Members of the United 
Nations; a declaration would be the best way of doing so. 
The second preambular paragraph of the resolution also 
recalled the solemn undertAking embodied in the Charter 
to· employ international ~achinery for the promotion of 
the economic and social advancement of all peoples. It 
would not be the first time that resolutions had been 
followed by a declaration; that also constituted· one of 
the most effective ways of accelerating the progress of 
the under-developed countries, which, according to 
operative paragraph 1 of the. resolution, was the duty of 
the United Nations. The provisions of operative 
paragraphs 3, 4 and 5 were repeated in part in the draft 
declaration which thus unquestionably reaffirmed certain 
unanimously recognized principles. 

24. Furthermore, it was necessary to bear· in mind that 
the USSR had submitted a similar draft declaration to 
the General Assembly (A/4648, .para. 48), which had 
referred' it to the Council for consideration. The latter 
could not shirk its duty. 

25. As to the argument that economic co-operation 
would not be feasible between countries· with different 
economic systems, it was precisely because of the 
difference of systems that such co-operation was so 
important for the peaceful co-existence of nations. 

26. However, it was a fact that at its current session 
the Council would not have time to examine the draft 
declaration in detail. No delegation appeared to have 
any objections of principle to , the proposed text and the 
criticisms put forward mainly concerned the form. That 
being so, he proposed that the delegations should consult 
together at the end of the debate with a view to deciding 
at what stage the Council should undertake a detailed 
study of and adopt the draft declaration. 

27. Mr. WODAJO (Ethiopia) said he was particularly 
unhappy to find that, because the session had been 
delayed, the CounciJl did not h~ve time to study in detail 
the draft declaration submxtted by the USSR, as 
requested by tht: General Assembly .. 

2~. The question was an extremely important one ·and 
Ethiopia, for its part~ was ready to support the draft 
submitted to the Council. It should not be viewed in 
the context of cold war ideologies, but merely as a 
reaffirmation of the principles recognized in the Charter 
and in international law for the resolving of some of the 
problems which beset the world. 

29. Ethiopia's foreign policy had always been guided 
by the principle of peaceful coexistence and, in 
September 1959, the Emperor of Ethiopia, in a radio 
address to the nation, had stated that differences in 
political and economic systems should not impede co
operation between nations on matters that were of common 
concern. 

30. The preamble to ·the draft declaration reaffirmed the 
basic principles of the Charter and thus should not give 
rise to controversy. However, the delegation of Ethiopia 
had reservations regarC'ing the fourth paragraph and 
questioned the need to introduce the . conceiJt of 
competition among States into such , a fie,d. Similarly, 
articles 1, 4, 5, 7 and 8 of the draft dedaration we:-e a 
mere repetition of principles and objectives which had 
been recognized in earlier United Nations resolutions. 
Article 2 was particularly timely. Article 3 lent Itself 
to controversy in its present form and should be 
rephrased. With regard to the. ~ird paragraph of 
article 5 the disagreement was not on the ne~d for 
general disarmament, but on the means of achieving that 

I 

I 
I 
I 



30 Economic and Social Counell- Thi.-Jt·first Session 

goal. The delegation of Ethiopia would accept that 
paragraph, without prejudice to the views of VP.'. ious 
States concerning the means of achieving general and 
complete disarmament. Article 6 posed a most 
fundamental principle. The right of every State to 
dispose of its natural resources in accordance with its 
interests was inherent in Jts sovereignty. On the other 
hand, it also imposed certain duties, particularly where 
the riglits of aliens were involved, although the latter 
could not override the right of the individuaJ State. 

31. Finally, he felt that, since the USSR had been asked 
to a~ree that its draft dedamtion should be submitted 
to the Council, it would now be unfair to raise the 
objection that the declaration would auplicate General 
Assembly resolution 1515. (XV), which had been put 
forward by fhe United Kingdom at the same time as the 
USSR had ·-· .~.t>mitted its draft declaration. The delega
tion of Eiliiop1a would therefore not support the proposal 
to defer consideration of the declaration unless 
arrangements were made for its further consideration at 
a time when the Council would have a longer period to 
devote to it, and it reserved the right to present further 
comments at that time. 

32. Mr. GREEN (New Zealand) said that his country 
firmly supported the principle of economic co-operation. 
The questions covered by the draft declaration submitted 
by the Soviet Union were already the subject of a number 
of United Nations studies and programmes; for instance, 
there were at least three main technical assistance bodies 
concerned with assistance to the under-developed 
countries-namely, UNICEF, the Expanded Programme 
of Technical Assistance and the Special Fund, all of 
which reported. to the Council, which in turn transmitted 
their reports· to the General Assembly. The most urgent 
need was for every Government to increase the size of its 
contribution to those programmes. The same was true of 
international ~ trade; the Commission on International 
Commodity Trade and GATT were already in existence 
and in active operation. The Soviet draft recommended 
application of the principle of most-favoured-nation 
treatment, but it must be acknowledged that that principle 
was open to a variety of interpretations; member;:; of 
GATT from different economic systems were therefore 
attempting to define its meaning in order to achieve a 
reasonable balance between the rights and the 
responsibilities of States. 

33. l'he New Zealand delegation thought it more 
important to give moral and financial support to the 
existing organizations than to formulate new principles 
since, in its view, declarations of objectives in general 
terms could never take the place of spontaneous 
negotiations between countries for the purpose of opening 
U!J new channels of trade. In that particula-: aspect of 
United Nations activities the ground had already been 
welJ prepared and the question had been dealt with in 

· · various ways, including the adoption of General Assembly 
resolution 1515 (XV). . He thought that pragmatical 
methods, such as the five-year appraisal of the programmes 
of the United Nations and of other organizations, were 
of infinitely greater value than the adoption of a 
declaration. 

34. At the sc:tme time, he appreciated the arguments in 
favour of postponing detailed study of the question until 
a biter Clate, and his delegation was prepared to support 
the Salvadorian proposal to invite Governments of States 
Members of the United '1\Tations and of the speciali~ed 
agenCies to comtnu::1icate their views on the question. 

35; The PRESIDENT invited the Hungarian observer 
to address the Council.· 

36. Mr. TARDOS (Hungary) felt that a declaration on 
international economic co-operation would provide useful 
guidctnce on relations between countriP::; with different 
political systems and different levels of economic 
development. By adopting it, Member States would 
reaffirm their belief in peaceful co-existence and would 
prove that they regarded the development of trade rela
tions as a factor in improving relations among States. 
Everyone must surely agree with the principles set forth 
both in the preamble and the articles of the revised 
version of the draft declaration. No one could oppose 
the gradual removal of discriminatory restrictions or the 
principle that assistance to under-developed countries 
should be based on respect for the sovereignty of those 
countries and non-interference in their internal affairs. 
Moreover, the declaration merely elaborated in a more 
concrete form those provisions of the Charter which 
related to international economic co-operation. 

3 7. He appreciated that soine articles had given rise to 
misunderstandings, Such was the case with the principle 
of most-favoured-nation treatment mentioned in 
article 3. Observance of that principle did not by itself 
ensure advantages or cause disadvantages to either party, 
but was designed merely to place them on an equal 
footing. Once the principle of equality between the 
parties had been established, the question of according 
mutual advantages then arose. Thus, for instance, because 
of fluctuations and differences in the terms of trade 
between countries, the application of the n:.ost-favoured
nation clause between the capitalist countries did not 
in itself produce equal mutual benefits; such benefits must 
be sought through trade negotiations. The Hungarian 
Government had never refused to make conce'3sions on a 
mutual basis. 

38. It was regrettable that discrimination stil1 frequently 
existed in trade relations. The Secretariat had recognized 
in a preliminary report on ways and means of 
promoting wider trade co-operation among States. 
(E/3389) that the industrialized market economies did 
not apply the same principles of non-discrimination in 
trade with the centrally planned economies as they were 
progressively applying to trade relations among them
selves, and those countries might be forced also to 
discriminate. For instance, the most-favoured-nation 
clause in commercial agreements between Hungary and 
the countries of the European Economic Community 
was being frustrated by the introduction of new customs 
tariffs to the disadvantage of non-member countries. 
That had led Hungary to consider the introduction of ~\ 
new customs tariff of its own in self-defence. 

39. The socialist countdes were quite prepared to make 
long-term. trade agreements with the capitalist countries, 
providing for COmpulsory quotas and CQntaining a most
favoured-nation clause, similar to those which th{.y 
concluded among themselves, provided that the capita1ist 
countries were willing to grant advantages equivalent to 
those accorded to themselves. Ther.e was no discrimina
tion in the trade relations of the socialist countries and 
no customs tariffs directed against third countries. 

40. Mrs. 1WRIGHT (Denmark) said that, because of 
th~ vital importance of international trade in the Danish 
economy, her delegation was particularly interested in 
the draft declaration submitted by the Soviet Union and 
especially the proposals which might affect the develop
ment of world trade. Resolution 1421 (XIV) of the 
General Assemblv concerning the strengthening and 
development of the world market, Economic and Social 
Council resolution 778 (XYJC) on the sam~. question and 
resolution 6 (XV) of the Economic Com"llission for 



114Srd meeting- 25 April 1961 
~-----------------------------------

Sl 

Europe concerning problems of East-West trade were all 
relevant in that connexion. ECE's Committee on 
Development of Trade had appointed an ad hoc working 
party to study thos~ problems and it would meet for 
the first time in May 1961, It would study a Danish 
proposal concerning, inter alia, the progressive multi
Iateralization of payments, proposals to increase imports 
of foodstuffs, consumer durables and capital goods by the 
countries of Eastern Europe from the countries of 
Western Europe, and the possibility oi increasing 
exports, especially of primary commodities and fuel oils, 
from the countries of Eastern Europe to those of 
Western Europe. The Danish authorities felt that ECE 
was in the best position to study problems relating to 
trade ·relations between East and West. 

41. Regarding article 3 of the draft declaration sub
mitted by the Soviet Union, she believed that it would 
be unrealistic to apply the principle of most-favoured
nation treatment to East-West trade relations, since 
it would be possible for countries where the commercial 
system was controlled by the Government to deprive the 
·most-favoured-nation clause of any value. As for the 
gradual removal of discriminatory restrictions, she re
called that in western countries such restrictions usually 
took the tangible form of customs tariffs, import restric
tions or subsidies, whereas the protection provided by the 
countries of Eastern Europe through a system of state 
imports was much more difficult to detect. Regarding 
the subregional economic organizations and alignments 
mentioned in article 2 of the draft declaration, regional 
economic otganizations inevitably operated to some 
extent against the interests of third countries. GATT 
had nevertheless permitted the establishment of customs 
unions and free trade areas, because it believed that the 
establishment of such groups would, on the whole, 
promote liberalization of world trade and would benefit 
third countries in the long run. In principle, the Danish 
delegation supported article 5 concerning assistance to 
under-developed countries, but thought that in view of 
the number of declarations which had already ~been made 
on the question, there was no point in reiterating the same 
principles yet again. 

42. For those reasons, and in view of the limited time 
availlable, the Danish delegation supported the proposals 
to postpone the item until a later date. It felt, however, 
that more effective means than a draft declaration: could 
be found for promoting international economic co
operation. 

43. Mr. DE PINIES (Spain) said that he supported 
the proposal of the representative of El Sah:.1dor. If 
the Council failed to adopt it, his delegatic.m might wish 
to make a further statement. 

44. Mrs MIRONOVA (Union of Soviet Socialist 
Republics) said she wished to point out, in order to 
dispel the misgivings of the French repre.sentative, that 
the structure of the present-day world, which included 
States with different social systems. provided ample 
proof that peaceful co-existence was possible. Ideological 
disputes should not be permitted to interfere with the 
expansion of economic relations among States, since that 
was precisely what provided a sound foundation for 
peaceful co-existence. Although it had no stake in the 
matter in view of the diversity of its own resources, the 
Soviet Union had always sought to normalize economic 
relations among States. 

45. The members of the Council ~nould not look for 
?th~r purposes in the draft declaraf'1on than those stated 
In It. · Its purposes were the same as those already 

embodied in the Charter and in General Assembly 
resolution 1515 (XV); her delegation had felt that, 
since the resolution refer.red to had been adopted 
unanimously, the logical next step was to take construc
tive action aimed at laying the foundations for economic 
co-operation and to make a formal declaration along 
those lines. It was not Communism but good will that the 
Soviet Union was trying to impose as the basis for co
operation in trade relations. East and West had enough 
common interests to make the elimination of trade 
barriers a matter of great importance. In any event, 
as the representative of Afghanistan had pointed out, 
the draft declaration was no longer exclusively a Soviet 
document, but constituted a common basis for discussion. 
The members of the Council should discuss any passages 
in it which they found unsatisfactory. 

46. In spite of the difficulties now being encountered. 
she did not fee~ that the proper course was to defer 
consideration of the matter to another session, for the 
Council's agenda was always very crowded. She hoped 
that the members of the Council would agree to extend 
the debate. 

47. With regard to the protest voiced by the Japanese 
representative, she pointed out that the Soviet 
representative's statement at the previous meeting had 
been based on observations made in September 1960 by 
the Director of the :.3ank of Japan at a meeting of the 
Executive Board of the International r~'.Ionetary Fund. 

48. Mr. TCHOBANOV (Bulgaria) wondered whether 
in view of the limited time available it might not be 
advisable to refer the draft declaration to the Economic 
Committee, which had ~ot yet been constituted for the 
present session. The Committee could take up the 
matter at once and submit a report in plenary at the end 
of the session. 

49. The PRESIDENT suggested that the members of 
the Council should discuss the matter privately. 

50. Mr. LEWANDOWSKI (Poland) proposed that rm 
decision should be taken until delegations had had an 
opportunity for consultation. 

·lt was so decided. 

51. The PRESIDENT invited JMr. Thormann, represen
tative of the International Federation of Christian Trade 
Unions, to address the Council. 

52. Mr. THORMANN (InternatiCllal Federation of 
Christian Trade Unions) recalled that, on a number of 
occasions since the adoption of the Charter the United 
Nations had defined the basic principles governing 
international economic and social co-operation; the most 
recent instance had been resolution 1515 (XV) concern
ing concerted action for economic development of 
economically less develooed countries adopted at the 
fifteenth session of the General Assembly. Although it 
questioned the need to adopt a new set of principles, as 
suggested by the Soviet Union, the IFCTU would suggest 
that, if the Council should nevertheless decide to adopt 
suc!t a declaration, the latter should specifically state 
that all international assistance should be provided. so 
far as possible, through intemationa! organi1..ations and. 
preferably, through the United Nations. The IFCTU 
felt that multilateral assistance of the kind provided at 
that time under various United Nations technical 
assistance programmes yielded better practical results 
than bilateral arrangementc; because it could be verified · 
and co-ordinated morf.l readily. The IFCTU also 
considered that multilateral assistance was the type most 



32 Economic and Social Council- Thirty-first Session 

conducive to world peace, as was evident from the fact 
that certain countries which desired to safeguard their 
security and avoid political tensions of any kind had 
preferred not to accept offers of bilateral assistance. 
Although his organization noted that the new version 
of the draft declaration contained a reference to the 

Printed in F'"lllce 

United Nations, ·it did not consider that reference 
sufficient to constitute an unreserved recommendation 
by the Council that Members of the United Nations 
should regard multilateralism as the form which inter
national economic co-operation should normally take. 

The meeting rose at 5.50 p;m. 

14202-September 1961-2,150 




